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Independent auditor’s report

To the sharcholders of
Gulf Investment House — KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Quualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gulf Investment House — Kuwaiti Public
Shareholding Company (the “Parent Company”) and Subsidiaries, (collectively the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The newly acquired associate, Future Kid Entertainment and Real Estate Company ICS.C.P., referred to note
13a) recognises operating revenue on cash received basis of accounting which is not in accordance with the
revenue recognition principles under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The effect of this
departure from IFRS has not been quantified and consequently we are unable to satisfy ourselves with respect
to the effect of this on the Group’s profit for the year, accumulated losses and the carrying value of the
associates by any other means.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis IESBA Code),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below as the key
audit matters.

Valuation of investments held at fair value

The Group invests in various asset classes, of which 9.5% of the total assets represent investments which are
carried at fair value and classified either as investments at fair value through profit or loss or as fair value
through other comprehensive income. The investments arc fair valued on a basis considered most approptiale
by the management, depending on the nature of the investment, and the valuation is performed by the Group
using a fair value hierarchy as detailed in note 20.2. 14% of these investments are carried at fair value based on
Level 1 valuations, and the balance 86% of these investments are catried at fair value based on Level 3
valuations. Fair value measurement can be a subjective area and more so for the investments classified under
level 3 since these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices in an active market. Given the inherent
subjectivity in valuation of investments classified under level 3 we determined this to be a key audit matter.
Refer to Note 11. and 12 for more information on fair valuation of investments at fair value through statement
of profit or loss and investments at fair value through other comprehensive income respectively.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Gulf Investment House — KPSC (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of investments held at fair value (continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others, documenting and assessing the processes in place to fair value
the investment portfolio. Agreeing the carrying value of the investments to the Group’s internal valuations
prepared using valuation techniques, assessing and challenging the appropriateness of estimates, assumptions
and valuation methodology and obtaining supporting documentation and explanations to corroborate the
valuations.

Investments in associates

The Group’s investments in associates represent 54% of the total assets and are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting and considered for impairment in case of indication of impairment. The investment in
assoclates is significant to our audit due to the Group’s share of results in the associates and the carrying value
of these assocdates. Tu addition, siguificant inanagement judgiment and nunbet of assutnptions e tequired in
the assessment of impairment, including the determination of the recoverable value of the investment based
on its value-in-use, in case there is a significant or prolonged decline in value based on published price quotes.
Further, the projected future cash flows and discount rates used by the Group in determining the investment’s
value in use are also subject to estimation uncertainty and sensitivity. Accordingly, we considered this as a key
audit matter. Refer note 13 for more information on investment in associates.

Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating management’s consideration of the impairment
indicators of investment in associates. In evaluating such consideration, we assessed whether any significant or
prolonged decline in value exists, whether there are any significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the associate operates, or structural changes in the field of industry in
which the investee company operates, or changes in the political or legal environment effecting the investees
business, and also whether there are any changes in the investees financial condition. We also reviewed
management’s assessment of the recoverable value of the investment including the reasonability of the cash
flow projections and discount rates used in the value in use calculation for associates, where there was a
significant or prolonged decline in value.

Other information included in the Group’s 2019 annual report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of
Directors, prior to the date of our auditors’ report and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the
Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 after the date of our auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have
obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Gulf Investment House — KPSC (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audir evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s teport. [Towever, [utute events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion,
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Gulf Investment House — KPSC (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Patent Company’s board of
directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report
that, except for the matter referred in the basis for qualified opinion section, we obtained all the information
and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations,
as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as
amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations
of the Companies Law, the Executive Regulations, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2019 that might
have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material violations of
the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the
organisation of the banking business, and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2019 that
might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

Wan

-

Anwar Y. Al-Qatami, F.C.C.A.
(Licence No. 50-A)
of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Kuwait

12 April 2020
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
KD KD
Income
Sale of Goods 771,664 -
Cost of sales (587,927) -
Gross profit 183,737 -
Unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (228,614) 6,154
Realised (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (49,430) 43,236
Share of results of associates 13 494,345 1,521,431
Net gain on acquisition of subsidiary 7.3 411,747 -
Realised gain on disposal of investment in associate 13 - (3,477,546)
Change in fair value of investment properties 14 (471,530) (140,237)
Realised gain on sale of investment properties 14 217,509 -
Dividend Income 81,039 9,711
Gain on conversion of debt to equity 17 - 17,799,681
Gain on reversal of murabaha charges due to debt to equity swap 8 - 1,090,930
Profit from saving deposits 209,505 -
Other income 139,442 9,502
Total income 987,750 16,853,862
Expenses and other charges
General, administrative and other expenses (245,599) (136,988)
Staif costs (496,459) (358,385)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain {2,054) 1,343
Impairment in value of investments in associates 13 - (3,172,906)
Investment expenses (13,321} (127,465)
{757,433) (3,794,401)
Profit before provision for Zakat and National Labour Support Tax
{NLST) 230,317 13,059,461
Provision for Zakat (637) -
Provision for NLST {1,591) -
Profit for the year 228,089 13,059,461
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 219,763 13,067,138
Non-controlling interests 8,326 (7.677)
228,089 13,059,461
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable the owners of the
Parent Company (Fils) 9 0.54 211.00

The notes set out on pages 11 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Conseolidated Financial Statements
31 Becember 2048

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
KD KD
Profit for the year 228,089 13,059,461
Other comprehensive income:
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Share of other comprehensive loss income of associates (13,243) (265,086)
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (108,109) 997,581
Total other comprehensive (foss)/income to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods {121,352) 732,495
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Net changes in fair value of investments in equity instruments designated at
FVOCI (402,156) (567,488)
Total other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods {402,156} (567,488)
Total other comprehensive (loss)fincome for the year (523,508) 165,007
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (295,419) 13,224,468
Total comprehensive {loss)/income attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company {300,864) 13,247,063
Non-controlling interests 5,445 {22,595)
{295,419) 13,224 468

The noter set out on pages 11 1o 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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31 December 2619

Consolidated statement of financial position

31 December

31 December

Note 2619 2018
KD KD

Assets
Cash and bank balances 10 2,476,185 7,130,968
Short-term deposits 10 11,506,849 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 767,240 426,048
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 12 3,632,886 3,435,527
Inventories 244,776 -
Accounts receivables and other assets 1,066,544 31,512
Investment in associates 13 24,471,116 24,161,375
Investment properties 14 983,345 2,358,940
Property and equipment 126,746 6,324
Total assets 45,175,687 37,550,694
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Other liabilities 16 936,461 942 512
Total liabilities 936,461 942,512
Equity
Share capital 17 40,649,566 40,649,566
Cunulative changes in fair value (537,052) {196,563)
Foreign currency translation reserve 929,115 1,042,615
Accumulated losses (4,858,659) (6,011,784)
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Parent Company 36,182,870 36,483,834
Non-controlling interests 8,056,256 124,348
Total equity 44,239,226 36,608,182
Total liabilities and equity 45175,687 37,550,694

Abdulaziz A, Alsanad
Chairman

The notes set out on pages 11 1o 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Guif lnvestment House - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
KD KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before provision for Zakat and NLST 230,317 13,059,461
Adjustments:
Depreciation 19,952 871
Reversal of liabilities as it is no longer required (included in other income) 16 (69,509) -
Share of results of associates 13 {494,345) (1,521,431)
Impairment in value of investments in associates - 3,172,906
Net gain on acquisition of subsidiary (411,747} -
Gain on conversion of debt to equity - (17,799,681)
Gain on reversal of murabaha charges due to debt to equity swap 8 - (1,090,930}
Change in fair value of investment properties 471,530 149,237
Realised gain on sale of investment properties (217,509) (267}
Dividend Income {81,039) (9,711)
Profit from saving deposits (209,505) -
Realised loss on disposal of investments in associates - 3,477 546
Provision for employees end of service benefits 60,657 28,651
{701,198) (633,348)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (341,192) (11,1586)
Accounts receivables and other assets 8,076 1,608
Inventories {11,879) -
Other liabilities (246,474) (124,832)
Cash used in operations {1,292,667) (667,728)
Employee end of service benefits paid (137,833) (66,912)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,430,500) (734,640)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividend received from associates 469,871 783,264
Acquisition of property and equipment (24,107) -
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiary 8,602,752 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment in associates - 5,513,517
Addition to investment in associates (1,752,408) (779,941}
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 1,097,324 607,400
Redemption proceeds received from financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 23,109 -
Profit received from saving deposits 209,505 -
Dividend received 81,039 9,711
Net cash from investing activities 8,707,085 6,133,951

The notes set out on pages 11 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial starements.



Gulf Investment House - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financia! Statemenis
31 December 2019

Consolidated statement of cash flows

10

Year ended

Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
KD KD
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid {1,903} (10,703)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest by subsidiaries (422,616} -
Movement in restricted bank accounts 381,719 189,249
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities {42,800) 178,546
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,233,785 5,677,857
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6,620,083 1,042,226
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10 13,853,868 6.620.083
Adjustment for non-cash transactions:

Transfer of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (364,253)
Transfer of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income - (497,6186)
Additions to investment in associates (note 13) - 784,266
Murabaha payables (note 15) - (34,553,834)
Issue of Share capital {note 17) - 34,553,834

The notes set out on pages 11 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

Gulf Investment House — KPSC {“the Parent Company™) was incorporated in Kuwait on 8 September 1998
as a Kuwaid shareholding company in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law. The Parent Company
along with its subsidiaries are jointly referred to as “the Group”. The Parent Company is registered with the
Central Bank of Kuwait as a finance company and is listed on Kuwait Stock Fxchange.

The Parent Company is a subsidiary of GIH Financing Ltd, (The Ultimate Parent Company).

'The Parent Company was registered with the Capital Market Authority (“CMA”) as an investment company.
However, during the previous year, the Parent Company has been removed from the registry of the CMA and
hence 1s no longer registered as a licensed investment company with CMA as at 31 December 2019.

The Group is primarily enpaped in investment activities aud teluted lmndal and advisory services. All acuvites
of the Group are carried out in compliance with the Noble Islamic Sharee’a, as approved by the Parent Company’s
Fatwa and Sharee’a Supervisory Board.

The Parent Company’s registered head office is at Dar Al-Awadi Tower, Sharq, Kuwait City, P.O. Box 28808,
13149 Safat, Kuwait.

The Board of Directors of the Patent Company approved these consolidated financial statements for issnance
on 12 April 2020. The general assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these
consolidated financial statements after issuance.

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include
the measurement at fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and investment properties.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaid Dinars (KD), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Parent Company.

The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and
the non-controlling interests based on their respective ownership interests.

3 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the regulations for financial
setvices institutions as issued by the Central Bank of Kuwait (“CBK”) in the State of Kuwait. These regulations
require expected credit loss (“ECL”) to be measured at the higher of the ECL on credit facilities computed
under IFRS 9 according to the CBI guidelines ot the provisions as required by CBI instruction; the
consequenl impact on related disclosures; and the adoption of all other requirements of lnternational Fnancial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™)
{collectively referred to as IFRS, as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait). However as of 31 December 2019
the Group does not have any credit facilities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4q Changes in accounting policies

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
which have been adopted by the Group. Information on these new standards is presented below:

Standard or Interpretation Eiffective for annual periods beginning
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IAS 28 - Amendments 1 January 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
IFRS 16 Leases

‘The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases effective from 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, IFRIC 4,
SIC-15 and SIC-27. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The Group, as a lessee, has adopted the following accounting policy in respect of its leases:

Atinception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is a lease. A contract s a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration.
If the contract is identified as a lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comptises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct cost incurred. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method over the
lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by an impaitment loss, if any. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

However, the adoption of IFRS 16 did not result in any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 28 — Amendments

The amendments to TAS 28 clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, mncluding its impairinent
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate ot joint venture that form part of the net investment in the
assoctate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. These include long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in an associate or joint venture.

The adoption of this amendment did not result in any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Apendsments to IFRS 3 and IFRS 17 - Clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
opetation it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when
an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously
held interests in that business.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle (continued)

IAS 12 - The amendments clarify that the requirements in the former paragraph 52B (to recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends where the transactions or events that generated distributable profits are
recognised) apply to all income tax consequences of dividends by moving the paragraph away from paragraph
52A that only deals with situations whete there are different tax rates for distributed and undistributed profits.

LAS 23 - The amendments clarify that If any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity
borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

The adoption of these amendments did not result in any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
fianctal statements.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2019, but are not relevant and/or do
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standatds have been published by the TASB but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted eatly by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first pertod beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but
are not expected to be relevant and / or to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation Effective for anusal periods beginning

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments No stated date
IFRS 3 - Amendments 1 January 2020
IAS 1 and TAS 8 - Amendments 1 January 2020

IFRS 100 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments
The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and TAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate
or joint venture, as follows:
*  require full recognition in the investot's financial statements of gains and losses atising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)
®  require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.e. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ intetests in that associate or
joint venture.

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or conttibution
of assets occurs by an investor transferting shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets {tesulting in loss of
control of the subsidiaty), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and jts Associate or Joint
Venture — Amendments (continued)

IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. However, eatly
implementation is allowed. Management anticipates that the application of these amendments may have an
tmpact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future should such transactions arise.

IFRS 3 — Amendments
The Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations ate changes to Appendix A Defined terms, the application
guidance, and the illustrative examples of IFRS 3 only with respect to Dafinition of Business. The amendments:

®  clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimuam,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;

¢ narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services provided to
customers and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce costs;

¢ add guidance and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantive process has been
acquired;

¢ remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of teplacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs; and

* add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant
tmpact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 and TAS 8 — Amendments

The amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 clarify the definition of ‘material’ and align the definition used in the
Conceptual Framework and the standards. The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed
from “could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’.

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5 Summary of significant accounting policies
‘The significant accounting policies and measurement basis adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are summarised below:

5.1 Basis of consolidation

Ihe Group financial statements consolidate those of the Parent Company and all of its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries
are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group and they are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for reporting dates which are typically not more than
three months from that of the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made
for the effect of any significant transactions or events that occut between that date and the reporting date of
the Parent Company’s financial statements. The details of the significant subsidiaries are set out in Note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements,
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies

5.1 Basis of consolidation (continued)

All transactions and balances between GGroup companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-Group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the underlying assct is also tested for impairment from a Group perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaties acquired
or disposed of during the year are recognised from the date the Group gains control, or until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary as applicable.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net asscts that ts not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests. Losses of subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a
deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

* Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

® Derecognizes the cartying amount of any non-controlling interests;

¢ Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in consolidated statement of changes
in equity;

* Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

*  Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

* Recognizes any surplus or deficit in consolidated statement of profit or loss;

* Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income to consolidated statement of profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group has directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

5.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiaty is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.2 Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. Itis calculated as the excess of the
sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and ¢) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-
date fair values of wdentifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated
above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss immediately.

5.3 Investment in associates

Associates ate those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which are neither
subsidiaries nor joint ventures. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to the Group’s share
in the associate is not recognised separately and is included in the amount recognised as investment in
associates.

Under the equity method, the carrying amount of the investment in associates is increased or decreased to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted
where necessaty to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities. Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

The share of results of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. This
is the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared either to the reporting date of the Parent Company or
to a date not earlier than three months of the Parent Company’s reporting date, using consistent accounting

policies. Adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date
and the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount under separate heading in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the cartying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair valuc of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

However, when the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate ot a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit ot loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.4 Segment reporting

‘The Group has two opetating segments: Investments and Real Estate. In identifying these operating segments,
management generally follows the Group’s service lines representing its main products and services. Each of
these operating segments is managed separately as each requires different approaches and other resources.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its consolidated
financial statements. In addition, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

5.5 Revenue
The Group recognises revenue from dividend income and management fee.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfers control of a product or setvice to a customer.

The Group follows a 5-step process:

1 Identifying the contract with a customet

2 Identifying the performance obligations

3 Determining the transaction price

4 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5 Recognising revenue when/as performance obligaton(s) are satisfied.

The total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various performance obligations based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers,

5.5.1 Sale of goods
Revenue s recognised when the Company transfers control of the assets to the customers which is usually at
the point in time the customer takes undisputed delivery of the goods.

5.5.2 Dividend income
Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, is recognised at the time the right to receive
payment is established.

5.5.3 Rendering of services

The Group earns fees and commission income from diverse range of asset management, investment banking,
custody and brokerage services provided to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two
categories:

Fee income earned from rervices that are provided over a certain period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include
commission income and asset management, custody and other management fees.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.5 Revenue (continued)
5.5.3 Rendering of setvices (continued)

Fee income from providing transaction servives

Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement transactions
for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party
are recognised on completion of the undetlying transaction.

5.6 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or
al the date of then ougu.

5.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ot production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance costs.

5.8 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The
Group depreciates its equipment using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off the assets over
their estimated useful economic lives. The residual value, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropuriate at each financial year-end.

5.9 Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assess whether the contract is a lease. A contract is 2 lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a
consideration. If contract is identified as a lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the lease commencement date. The Group elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contract that,
at commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and lease contract for which the underlying
asset is of low value.

Right of use assets

The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprise the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The
right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method over the lease term. In addition,
the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measared at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is
subsequently measured at amortised costs using effective interest method. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liability is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, or a change in lease payment.

510  Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted for
using the fair value model.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

510  Investment propertics (continued)
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently, investment
properties are re-measured at fair value on an individual basis based on valuations by independent real estate
valuators and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value are taken
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties are de-recognised when cither they have been disposed or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment propeity ouly when thete ts a clunge w use. Lor a trausler {rom
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change
in use.

511  Impairment testing of non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary
to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined
individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such
as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its cartying amount.

5.12 Financial insttuments

5.12.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by directly attribucable
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at
fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below.

All ‘regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date ie. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of Group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5,12  Financial instruments (continued)

5.12.1 Recognition, inftial measurement and detecognition (continued)

® rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

¢ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement
and either

(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.12.2 Classification of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon
initial recognition:

* financial assets at amortised cost
* financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification is determined by both:

* the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset
* the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

* the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met (note 5.12.3); and

* the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVOCI
criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
No such designation have been made.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
512  Financial instruments (continued)
5.12.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at armortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

* they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
mterest on the principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

‘The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise of the following:

o Cash and bank balances and short-term deposits
Cash on hand and demand deposits are classified under cash and bank balances and deposits placed with
financial institutions with a maturity of less than one yeat are classified as short-term deposits.

o Awounis and other financial asiets
Accounts receivables are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for impairment (note 5.12.4).

Receivables which are not categorised undet any of the above are classified as “other receivables/other assets™.

Financial assets at FVOCIT
The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI comprise of investments in equity shares: These represent investments
in equity shares of various companies and include both quoted and unquoted.

Debt instruments at FVOCT
The Group accounts for debt instruments at FVOCT if the assets meet the following conditions:

* they are held under a business model whose objective it is “hold to collect” the associated cash flows and sell;
and

* the contractual terms of the financial asscts give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Any gaius o1 losses tecognised in other cotnprehensive income (OCI) will be recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss upon derecognition of the asset. The Group does not hold any such instruments at
the reporting date.

Egquity instruments at F1"OCI

On initia] recognition, the Group may malke an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVOCI. Designation at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
512  Financial insttuments (continued)

5.12.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

Equity instruments at FVVOCT (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profie-taking; or

* it is a detivative (except for a derivative that is a financial gnarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is
transferred to retained earnings within the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI are categorised at
fair value through profit and loss. Further, itrespective of business model financial assets whose contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVIPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which
the hedge accounting requirements apply. The category also contains investments in equity shares.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
801 i W & : :

profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market

transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL comprise of the investment in equity shares and funds.

5.12.4 Impairment of financial assets
The Group applies three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at fait value through profit or loss:

"  Loan to customets
* Bank balances and time deposits
= Other financial assets

Equity instruments are not subject to Expected Credit Losses.
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5.12 Financial instruments (continued)

5124 [Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Tmpairment of credit favilities

Impairment on credit facilities shall be recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at an
amount equal to the higher of ECL under IFRS 9 according to the CBK guidelines, and the provisions required
by the CBK instructions. However, there is no any credit facility as of the reporting date.

Lmpairment of financial assets other than credit facilities
The Group recognises ECL on investment in debt instruments measured at amortised cost or FVOCT and on
balances and deposits with banks and other assets.

Expected Credit Losses
The Group applies three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) as follows:

Stage 1: 12 months ECL

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12-month ECL on financial assets where there has
not been significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition or on exposures that are determined to
have a low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when
its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL on financial assets where there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL on financial assets that are determined
to be credit impaired based on objective evidence of impairment.

Life time ECL is ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is the portion of life time expected credit loss that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Both life time ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated
on either an individual basis or a collective basis depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments.

Determining the stage of impairment

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is credit
impaired. The Group considers a financial asset to be credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash Hows of the financial asset have occurred or when conteactual
payments ate 90 days past due.

At each reporting date, the Group also assesses whether there has been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from the
reporting date with the risk of default at the date of inital recognition. The quanteative criteria used to
determine a significant increase in credit risk is a series of relative and absolute thresholds. All financial assets
that are 30 days past due are deemed to have significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
migrated to stage 2 even if other criteria do not indicate a significant increase in credit risk.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.12  Financial instruments (continued)
5.12.4 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability weighted estimates of credit losses and are measured as the present value of all cash
shottfalls discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial instrument. Cash shortfall represent the
difference between cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The key elements in the measurement of ECL include probability of default (PD),
loss given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Group estirates these elements using appropriate
credit risk models taking into consideration the internal and external credit ratings of the assets, nature and
value of collaterals, forward looking macto-econormic scenarios etc.

The Group has applied simplified approach to impairment for trade and other assets (represented by deposits,
prepayments and other dues from clients) as permitted under the standard. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
fFactors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Provision for credit losses in accordance with CBK instructions

The Group is required to calculate provisions for credit losses on finance credit facilities in accordance with
the instructions of CBK on the classification of credit facilities and calculation of provisions. Credit facilities
are classified as past due when a payment has not been received on its contractual payment date or if the facility
is in excess of pre-approved limits. A credit facility is classified as past due and impaired when the instalment
ot a principal instalment is past due for more than 90 days and if the carrying amount of the facility is greater
than its estimated recoverable value. Past due and past due and impaired loans are managed and monitored as
irregular facilities and are classified into the following four categories which ate then used to determine the
provisions.

Category Criteria Specific provisions
Watch list Irregular for a period of 90 days -
Substandard Irregular for a period of 91- 180 days 20%
Doubtful Irregular for a period of 181- 365 days 50%

Bad Irregular for a period exceeding 365 days 100%

‘The Group may also include a credit facility in one of the above categories based on management’s judgement
of a customet’s financial and/or non-financial circumstances.

In addition to specific provisions, minimum general provisions of 1% on cash facilities and 0.5% on non-cash
facilities are made on all applicable credit facilities (net of certain restricted categoties of collateral) which are
not subject o specilic provisioulug.

5.12.5 Classification and subsequent measutrement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities includes other liabilities and murabaha payables.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

. Financial liabilities at amortised cost
These are stated using effective profit rate method and other labilities and murabaha payable are classified as
financial liabilities other than at FVTPL.



Gulf Investment House - ¥KPSC and Subsidiaries 25
Consolidated Financial Statemenis
31 December 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
512 Financial instruments (continued)

5.12.5 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial Habilities (continued)

Other liabilitier
Payables and other liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed or not.

Murababa payable

Murabaha payable represents amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased under
murabaha arrangements. Murabaha payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance
cost. Deferred finance cost s expensed on a time apportontnent basis taking into account the borrowing rate
attributable and the balance outstanding.

All the profit-related charges are included within finance costs.

5.12.6 Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral
patt of the effective profit rate.

5.12.7 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statemnent of
financial position if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.12.8 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not tracded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substandally the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation
models.

513  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Legal and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior period profits in accotdance with
the requirements of the Companies’ Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association.

Other components of equity include the following:

* foreign currency translation reserve — comprises of foreign currency translation differences arising from
the translation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign subsidiaties and associates into Kuwaiti Dinar
(<D}

*  Cumulative changes in fair value reserve - comprises of gains and losses relating to financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and Group share of cumulative change in fair value reserve of
assoclates.



Guif Investment House - KPSC and Subsidiaries 28
Conselidated Financial Statemenis
349 December 2019

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

513  Equity, reserves and dividend payments (continued)
Accumulated losses include all current and prior period profits and losses. All transactions with owners of the
parent are recorded separately within consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have
been approved in a General Assembly.

514  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there ate a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

5.15 Foreign curtency translation

5,151 Functional and presentation cutrency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwait Dinar (IKD), which is also the functional
currency of the Parent Company. Fach entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity ate measured using that functional currency.

5.15.2 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign cutrency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
ot loss. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetaty items measured at fair value which
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Translation difference on non-monetary asset classified as, “fair value through profit or loss” is reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and “fair value through other
comprehensive income” is reported as part of the cumulative change in fair value reserve within consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

5.15.3 Foreign operations

In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional
currency other than the KD are translated into IXD upon consolidation. The functional cutrency of the entities
in the Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
5.15  Foreign currency translation (continued)

5.15.3 Foreign operations {continued)

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into KD at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KID at the closing rate. Income and expenses have been
translated into KID at the average rate over the reporting period. Iixchange differences are charged/credited to
other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and are recognised as patt of the gain or loss on disposal.

516  Lnd of service indemnity

The Parent Company and its local subsidiaties provide end of setvice benefits to its employees. The entitlement
to these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a
minimum service petiod in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts. The expected costs
of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This liability, which is unfunded, represents the
amount payable to each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date.

In addition to the end of service benefits with respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group also makes
contributions to the Public Institution for Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees” salaries. The
Group’s obligations are limited to these conuibutions, which are expensed when due.

5.17 Taxation

5.17.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24 of
2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders of the parent company. As per law,
income from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST
have to be deducted from the profit for the year.

5.17.2 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders
of the parent company in accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of
Directors’ resolution, which states that income from associales and subsidiaries, Board of Directors’
remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the
contribution. '

5173 Zakar
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company in accordance with the Ministty of Finance resolution No. 58/200/ effective from 10
December 2007.

Under the NLST and Zakat regulations, no carry forward of losses to the future years or any catry back to prior
years is permitted.

5.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
bank balances, short-term deposits and short term highly liquid investments matuting within three months
from the date of inception less due to banks and blocked bank balances.
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5.19  Related party transactions

Related parties are associates, major shareholders, board of directors, executive staff, their family members and
the companies owned by them. All related party transactions are carried out with the approval of the Group’s
management.

6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncettainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

6.1 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

6.11 Business model assessment

The Group classifies financial assets after performing the business model test (please see accounting policy for
financial instruments sections in note 5.12). This test includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured and the risks that
affect the performance of the assets. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification
of those assets.

6.1.2  Significant increase in credit tisk

Estimated credit losses are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime
ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since
mnitial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define “significant” increase. Therefore, assessment whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

6.1.3  Classification of real estate property
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified as trading, property
held for development or investment propetty.

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the otdinaty course of
business.

The Group classifies property as property under development if it is acquired with the intention of
development.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

6.1.4 Control assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to ditect the

relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activites
- and ability to use its power to affect variable return requires considerable judgement.
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6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
{continued)
6.1 Significant management judgments (continued)

6.1.5  Equity method accounting for entities in which the Group holds less than 20% of the voting
rights

Management has assessed the level of influence that the Group has over its material associates (note 13) and
determined that it has significant influence even though the shareholding in these associates are below 20%,
because the Group exercises significant influence over the associates by way of board representation.
Consequently, these investments have been classified as associates and has been accounted for using the equity
method.

6.1.6  Yair values of assets and Liabilities acquired
‘The determination of the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as a result of business
combination requires significant judgement.

6.2 Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially
different.

6.2.1 Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
tmpairment foss on the Group’s investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

6.2.2 Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of estimated credit losses involves estimates of loss given default and probability of default. Loss
given default is an estimate of the loss arising in case of default by customer. Probability of default is an estimate
of the likelihood of default in the future. The Group based these estimates using reasonable and supportable
forward looking information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different econotnic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

6.2.3  Revaluation of investment properties

The Group catries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine
fair values and the valuators have used valuation techniques to arrive at these fair values. These estimated fair
values of investment properties may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length
transaction at the reporting date.

6.2.4  Fair valuc of financial iusttunreiits

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This requires tanagement to develop estimates and
assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that matket participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of
financial instraments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at
the reporting date.
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7 Suhbsidiary companies

7.1 Details of the Group’s consolidated subsidiaries as of the reporting date are as follows:

Country of Proportion of

Nature of business

Subsidiary registration and ownership interest
place of business  held by the Group
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
% %
Afkar Holding Company K.S.C.("Afkar") Kuwait
51.92% -
{note 7.3)
Bait Al-Amar Al-Khaleeji General Trading  Kuwait 99% 99%
and Contracting Company - WLL
India Diversified Co. Cayman Island 90% 90%
Gateway Acquistion, LLC {("GA") U.S.A. 100% 100%

7.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Investment and related activities
Real estate

Undertaking Islamic investments
Undertaking Islamic investments

During the year Group has consolidated Afkar, with material non-controlling interests (NCI}):

Proportion of
ownership

interests and Profit/(loss} allocated to

Accumulated NCI

Name voting rights NCI
held by the NCi
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 bec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
% % KD KD KD KD
Afkar Holding Company
K.S.C.(*Afkar”") 48.08% - 36,809 - 7,962,608 -
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non- controlling interests (28,483) {7,677} 93,648 124,348
8,326 (7.677} 8,056,256 124,348

Summatrised financial information for the above subsidiary as of 30 September 2019, before intra-group

eliminations, is set out below:

KD
Mon-current assets 6,070,531
Current assets 10,442,390
Total assets 16,512,921
Non-current Eabilities 113,519
Current liabilities 163,130
Total liabilities 276,649
Equity attribuiable to owners of the Parent Company 8,273,664

Non-controlling interests (including NCI of the sub subsidiary}

7,962,608
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7 Subsidiary companies

7.2 Subsidiaties with material non-controlling interests (continued)

KD
Total income 827,448
Profit for the year 30,379
Other comprehensive loss for the year (1,382)
Total comprehensive income for the year 28,997
-attributable to owners of the Parent Company (7,148)
-attributable to NCI 36,145
Net cash flow used in operating acfivities {37,393}
Net cash flow from investing activities 225,622
Net cash flow used in financing activities (825,000)
Net cash outflow (636,771)

7.3 Acquisition of subsidiary

During the year, the Parent Company acquired an additional equity stake of 10.16% in Afkar Holding Company
K.5.C. (Holding) (“Investee”), which resulted in increasing its ownership intetrest in the previously equity
accounted associate from 41.76% to 51.92% enabling the Group to control the investee. The acquisition was
accounted in accordance with IFRS 3 as follows:

Kb

Total consideration paid 1,257,512
Fair value of the previcusly held equity interests in the acquiree (note 13 b) 6,831,216
Value of non-controlling interests 8,349,079

16,437,807
Less: recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Bank balances and short-term deposits 9,860,264
Account receivables and other assets 1,000,328
Inventories 232,897
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 522,625
Investment in associates {note 13) 5,461,176
Property and equipment 159,049
Account payable and other liabilities (386,783)
Total identifiable net assets 16,849,554
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary (bargain purchase) 411,747

For the putpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow, the net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiary is
KD8,602,752.

The financial position of the Afkar Holding Company K.S.C. (Holding) as of 30 September 2019 was used for
consolidation as of 31 December 2019 and accordingly, Afkar Holding Company K.S.C. (Holding) as a
subsidiary, contributed an amount of IKID 827,448 to the revenue and a net profit of KD 30,379 to the results
of the Group for the yvear ended 31 December 2019.

8 Gain on reversal of murabaha charges due to debt to equity SWAP

During the previous year, upon completion of the debt to equity swap, the Group reversed an amount of
KI11,090,930, murabaha charges accrued on the debt which was swapped into equity (refer note 15) as such
murabaha charges were no longer due.
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9 Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Parent

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the owners
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Earnings for the year attributable to the owners of the Parent Company (KD) 219,763 13,067,138
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year - shares 406,495,660 61,904,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Fils) 0.54 211.09
10 Cash and cash equivalents
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Cash and bank balances 2,476,185 7,130,968
Short term deposits 11,506,849 -
13,983,034 7,130,968
Less: Balances in restricted bank accounts*® - (379,8186)
l.ess: Dividend restricted bank accounts ** {129,166) (131,069)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows 13,853,868 6,620,083

The short terms deposits have original maturity of three months or less and carty profit in the range of 2.7%
to 3.3% (31 December 2018: 0.5% to 2.5%) per annum.

* Restricted bank balances represent balances held by the Ministry of Justice related to 2 legal case filed by a
lender for the recovery of outstanding murabaha payable and during the year this has been released by the
Ministry of Justice upon withdrawal of legal cases.

**Relates to amount set apart to meet unclaimed dividend balances, as and when they are claimed by the
shareholdets. An amount of KI31,903 (31 December 2018: KID10,703) was paid during the current year, out of

dividend payable which relates to dividend for prior yeats.

11 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Quoted securities 613,718 -
Unquoted securities 63,331 275,843
Unquoted funds managed by external fund managers 20,191 150,205
767,240 426,048

Fair values of unquoted securities and unquoted funds managed by external fund managers are determined
using valuation techniques that are not based on observable market prices or rates (Note 20.2).
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12 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Quoted securities - Local
Yiaco Medical Company KPSC - 444,947
Unguoted equity securities
Ibdar Bank B.S,C 1,592,626 1,671,083
Al Muttahed for Investment and Real Estate Development Company 707,492 697,665
Turkapital Holding B.S.C 420,177 276,661
Mozon [nvestment Holding Co 204,495 184,847
Others 350,468 160,514
Managed funds 257,628 -
3,532,886 2,990,580
3,532,886 3,435,627

These investments in equity instruments are held for medium to long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the
Group has elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVOCI as it believes that
recognising short-term fluctuations in the fair value of these investments in consolidated statement of profit or
loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes
and realising their performance potential in the long run.

During the previous year, the Group disposed of equity investments at FVOCI for a consideration of
KID316,134 as per the decision of the management to exit from the investment. Consequently, the Group
recognized a realised loss of KID9,933 in retained earnings.

Fair values of certain unquoted securities are determined using valuation techniques that are not based on
observable market prices or rates (tefer note 20.2).

13  Investment in associates
Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Country of

registration
and principal

place Nature of Percentage
of business business ownership Carrying value
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % KD KD

Quoted Associates
Inovest B.S.C. (Closed) ("Inovest”)* Bahrain investment 13.61 13.61 5,020,244 4,985,023
Future Kid Entertainment and Real

Estate Company K.S.C.P("Future

Kid™) (a)* Kuwait Real Estate 16.71 “ 2,136,835 -
Amar Finance and Leasing Company
K.P.S.C ("Amar") * Kuwait Investment 13.82 13.82 2,402,027 2,513,248

9,659,106 7,498,271
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13 Investment in associates (continued)

Country of
registration
and principal
place Nature of Percentage
of business business ownership Carrying value
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018 2019 2018
%a % KD KD
Unquoted Associates
Afkar Holding Company K.3.C. Kuwait Investment
(Holding)} and subsidiaries ("Afkar") - 41.76 - 7,021,387
Guif Real Estate Co. 3.5.C. {Closed) Saudi
("GREC") * Arabia Real Estate 13.48 13.48 5,519,139 5,443,315
Mada'in Mroperties ° J & C ("Mada’in")* UAE Real Estate 12.16 1216 1,370,617 1,399,592
Majan Development Company Joint
Stock (Closed) ("Majan”) Oman Real Estate 21.33 2133 2,769,025 2,798,810
Gulf Industrial Development Co. Saudi Arabia Industrial
("GIDM 28 - 4,189,992 -
Hayat Factory For Fruit Drinks and Saudi Arabia  Industrial
Bottle Water Company Limited
(*Hayat™y* 15 - 1,063,237 -
14,912,010 16,663,104
24,471,116 24,161,375
The movement of investment in zssociates is as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2019 2018
KD KD
Carry vatue as at beginning of the year ~ as restated 24,161,375 34,736,403
Effect of adjustment of IFRS 9 - (1,601,910)
24,161,375 33,134,493
Additions during the year (note 13 a) 1,752,408 1,664,206
Transferred to subsidiary during the year (note 7.3 & 13 b) (6,907,521) -
Addition due to consclidation of Afkar Holding Company K.S.C (note 7.3) 5,461,176 -
Disposed during the year - (8,991,083)
Impairment in value of investments in associates - (3,172,906}
Share of results of associates (note 13 a & 13 b) 570,650 1,521,431
Share of other comprehensive income (13,243) (265,088)
Share of Foreign currency franslation reserve (83,858) 1,153,564
Dividends received (469,871) (783,264)
24,471,116 24 161,375

* Classification of associates where the Group holds less than 20 per cent of the voting power of the investee
is based on the existence of significant influence exercised by the Group. This is evidenced by the Group’s
representation on the board of directors and participation in policy and decision making process of the investee
with sufficient degree for the Group to demonstrate that it has significant influence over the respective
associates.
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13

b)

d)

Investment in associates (continued)

During the year, the Parent Company has acquired 16.71% eqnity interest in Future Kid Entertainment and
Real Estate Company K.S.C.P, a Kuwaiti listed company, for a consideration of KI31,752,408. The
management of the Parent Company believes that the Group exercises significant influence over the above
investee and accordingly has been equity accounted with effect from 315 March 2019. The acquisition has
resulted in a net bargain purchase of KID478,194. (being the excess of Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities aver the cost of the investment), which has been recorded
as part of the above share of result of associates during the year.

'The financial position of the investee as of 30 September 2019 was used for equity accounting as of 31
December 2019 and accordingly, Future Kid Entertainment and Real Estate Company K.S.C.P as an
associate contributed an amount of IKID141,021 as share of results to the net results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The deemed loss from the fair valuation of the previously held equity interest (note 7) on acquisition date
amounted to KID76,305 (being the difference between the fair value of the previously held equity interest
KD 6,983,826 and the catrying value based on the equity method KD 6,907,521) and has been included
under the share of results of associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for year ended 31
December 2019,

During the previous year, the Group has fully disposed its associate, Arkan Al Kuwait Real Estate Company
KSCP for a total consideration of KI25,513,517, realising a loss of KID3,477,546.

During the previous year, as patt of an assets swap agreement the Group acquired 1.64% of Gulf Real Estate
Co. §.5.C (Closed) (an existing associate} for a consideration of KID784,266

During the previous year, the Group acquited an additional 6.82% of Afkar Holding Company IC.S.C for a
total consideration of KID779,937 against its fair value of KID1,170,728 as of acquisition date and the net
gain on bargain purchase amounting to KI3271,530 has been recorded as a part of the share of results after
netting off the Goodwill KID119,261. During the current year, upon acquisition of additional stake, this was
transferred to investment in subsidiary (note 7.3).

The carrying value of investment in associates is tested for impairment by estimating the recoverable amount
using fair value approach. The fair value calculation uses market observable data which includes price to
book value multiples and price to earnings multiples of comparable companies. As a result, the Parent
Company has not provided for impairment of investment in associates during the year (31 December 2018:
KD3,172,906).

Group’s share of associate’s contingent liabilities amounted to KID856,182 (31 December 2018:
KD1,001,638) as of the reporting date
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14 Investment properties
The movement in investment properties is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD

Fair value as at 1 January 2,358,940 3,271,289
Changes in fair value (471,530) (149,237)
Disposal during the year (879,815) (659,777)
Foreign currency translation adjustment {24,250) (103,339)
983,345 2,358,940

Livestnent propetlics comprise of commetcial and retail properties in the following countties:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
india 937,593 1,235,339
United State of America 45,752 1,123,601
Total 983,345 2,358,940

The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2019 and 31 Decembert 2018 are determined by
independent valuers who have apptropriate gualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties in the
relevant locations. The fair values wete determined based on matket approach that reflects recent transaction prices
for similar properties. In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest and the best use of the properties is
used on their current use. There has been no change to the valuation techniques during the yeat. The fair value of
investment properties is measured under the Level 2 fair value hierarchy.

During the year, the Group disposed two investment propexties with 2 catrying value of KDD879,815 (31
December 2018: KID659,777) resulting in a net gain of KID 217,509 (31 December 2018: KD 267).

15 Murabaha payables

During the 2017, a local Tslamic Bank (“The Bank™) (original murabaha lender) has initiated legal proceedings against
the Parent Company to recover the due Murabaha payable. On 25 September 2017, the Kuwaiti Court (“the Court”)
ruled in favor of the Bank by giving the Bank the execution tight to the assets pledged as collateral for the murabaha
facility. The Parent Company filed 2 counter claim against the Bank stating that the amount claimed by the Bank is
in excess of the actual due amount and requested the Coutt to reverse the previous ruling and to involve a specialist
to determine the actual amount that is payable to the Bank. The Court had accepted the claim filed by the Parent
Company by issuing an injunction ordet.

On 6 May 2018, the Bank wransferred the Murabaha payable, to GIH Fiuaucing Co. (GIHE), consequently the
Murabaha liability was transferred as due to GIHF, since the Banlk does not own GIHF. Further, during the
previous year, GIHF agreed with the Pagent Company to swap principal murababa payable balance into an equity
stake in the Parent Company. Accordingly, during December 2018 the Parent Company issued 345,538,340 new
shares to GIHF in setilement of the murabaha payable due to them which amounted to KD 34,553,834 (refer
note 17). Consequently, as mutually agreed, both the parties have completed all formalities in relation to
withdrawing the legal cases filed.
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16 Other liabilities

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Dividend payable 129,166 131,089
Employees’ end of service benefits 359,861 338,444
Other payables and accrued expenses * 447,434 472 999
936,461 942 512

* Duting the year parent Company reversed provisions which are no longer required amounting to KD 69,509
and it has been included under other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

17 Share Capital, statutory reserve and dividend

Share capital

The authorised, issued and paid up capital of the Parent Company amounts to XD 40,649,566 (31 December 2018:
KID40,649,566) distributed over 406,495,660 shares (31 December 2018: 406,495,660 shares) with 100 Fils pat value
each as of 31 December 2019.

During the previous year, the Parent Company had set off the accumulated losses of KID10,667,601 as of 31
December 2017, against the statutory reserve of IKID343,089 and then against the share capital of KIDD10,324,512
after approval of the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 13 December 2018.

Consequent to the debt restructuring carried out during December 2018, the Parent Company had issued
345,538,340 shares at par value of 100 Fils per share amounting to KID34,553,834 to the Parent Company’s
mutabaha lender.

In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, an amount of KD17,799,681 representing the
difference between the fair value of the equity issued KD16,754,153 and the cariying value of the debt settled
{KID34,553,834) was recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as gain on conversion of debt to
equity during the fourth quarter of 2018. However, in compliance with the local laws, the new shares were issued
at par value, and the difference between the par value and the fair value of the new equity issued amounting to
KI>17,799,681 was recorded in accumulated losses in the consolidated statement of changes in equity as of 31
December 2018. Consequently, this transaction had no effect on the net equity attributable to the owners of the
Parent Company as of 31 December 2018.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Cotnpany’s Articles of Association, a minimum of 10% of
the profit for the year shall be transfetred to the statutoty reserve. The annual general assembly of the Parent
Company may resolve to discontinue such transfer when the reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital. The
teserve may only be used to oflsel losses or enable the payment of a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital in
years when profit fs not sufficient for the payment of such dividend due to absence of distributable reserves. Any
amounts deducted from the reserve shall be refunded when the profits in the following years suffice, unless such
reserve exceeds 50% of the issued shate capital. No transfer has been made to statutory reserve due to accumulated
losses as of 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18 Segment analysis

‘The Group activities are concentrated in three main segments: Investments, Real Estate and Manufacturing. These
segments are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for resource allocation and
performance assessment Segment results include revenue and expense directly attributable to each reporting
segment as the Group does not have any inter segment charges. Segment assets comprise those operating assets
that are directy attributable to the segment.

Segmental information for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Investments Reat Manufacturing Unallocated Total
estate
KD KD KD KD KD

As at 31 December 2019
Seyinent lncorme 818,682 (264,021) 771,664 139,442 1,578,677
Segment result 905,271 (254,022) {25,405) {397,755) 228,089
Total assets 42,754,275 983,345 1,371,167 66,900 45,175,687
Total labilities - - (276,649) (659,812) {936,461)
Segment net assels 42,754,275 983,345 1,094,518 (592,912) 44,239,226
Cther disclosures
Investment in associates 24,471,116 . - - 24,471,116
Share of results of associates 494,345 - - - 494,345
Unrealised loss on financial assets at -

fair value through profit or loss (228,614) ) ) (228,614)
Change in fair value of investment -

properties - {471,530) - (471,530)
Depreciation - - 13,771 6,181 19,952
As at 31 December 2018
Segment income 16,993,597 (148,970) - 9,235 16,853,862
Segment result 13,693,226 (148,970) - (484,795) 13,059,461
Total assets 34,045,772 2,358,840 - 8,324 36,411,036
Total liabilities - - - (942,512) (942,512)
Segment net assets 34,045,772 2,358,840 - (936,188) 35,468,524
Other disclosures
Investment in associates 24,161,375 - - 24 161,375
Share of results of associates 1,621,431 - - 1,521,431
Realized loss on disposal of ) (3,477 546

associates (3,477.546) ) )
Impalrmfant in value of investments in (3,172,906) ) ) (3,172,906

associates )
Unrealised loss on financial assets &t

fair value through profit or loss 6,154 - ) 6,154
Change in fair value of investment
properties - (148,237) - (149,237)
Depreciationjo - - - 871 871
Gain on conversion of debt 1o equity 17,799,681 . - . 17,799,681

i bah

Gain on reversal of Murabaha 1,090,930 ) _ i 1,090,930

charges due to debt to equity swap
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18 Segment analysis {continued)

Geographical Segments
The geographical segments are as follows:

Profit f {loss) before taxes Assets Linbilitica
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2019 2019 2018 2019 2018
KD KD KD KD KD KD
Kuwait 698,136 16,381,427 18,794,083 17,102,138 732,279 582,727
Gulf and Middle Cast (192,284) (4,021,326) 22,935,617 17,351,192 - -
Others (277,763) 699,360 3,445,987 3,097,363 204,182 349,785
228,089 13,059,461 45175,687 37,550,694 936,461 942,512

19 Related party transactions

Related parties represent associates, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and othet related parties
such as major shareholders and companies in which directors and key management petsonnel of the Group are
principal owners or over which they are able to exercise significant influence ot joint control. Pricing policies and
terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Details of significant related party transactions and balances are as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Pec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Transactions included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
Realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss* - (15,822)
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Salaries and other short-term benefits 94,671 65,763
Terminal benefits 15,793 5,664
110,464 71,427

* During the previous year, as per the assets swap agreement signed between the Parent Company and one of its
associates, the Parent Company has transferred financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with a total catrying value of KD 810,020 against the
equity shares of another existing associate of the Parent Company, realizing a loss of KID 15,822 and KID9,933
which was recognized in the profit or loss and the retained earnings respectively, during the previous year.
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20 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value

measurement

20,1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position may also be categorized as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
At amortised cost:
+« Bank balances and short-term deposits 13,983,034 /7,130,968
« Accounis receivables and other assets 1,066,544 31,512
15,049,578 7,162,480
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
« Quoted securities 613,718 -
+ Unquoted securities 63,331 275,843
» Unquoted funds managed by external fund managers 90,191 150,205
767,240 426,048
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
+ Quoted securities - 444 947
+ Unguoted equity securities 3,275,258 2,990,580
* Managed Funds 257,628 -
3,532,886 3,435,527
Total financial assets 19,349,704 11,024,055
Financial liabilities {at amortised costs) :
+  Other liabilities 690,119 604,089
690,119 604,069

Fair value measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Group measures financial instruments such
as transaction amount at fair value though profit or loss and financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income at fair value and measurement details are disclosed in Note 20.2 to the consolidated financial
statements. In the opinion of the Group’s management, the carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities

which are carried at amortised costs are considered a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

‘The Group also measures non-financial assets such as investment properties at fair value at each annual reporting

date, which is measured under level 2 of the fair value hietarchy.

20.2 Fair value hierarchy for financial insttuments measured at fair value
All assets and hiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are grouped into
three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs

to the measurement, as follows:
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20 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

20.2 Fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) o indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2019 lLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Financial assets at fair value:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

= Quoted securities 613,718 - - 613,718
s Unquoted securities - - 63,331 63,331
s  Unquoted funds managed by external fund

managers - - 90,191 90,191

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

+  Unquoted equily securities - - 3,275,258 3,275,258

s  Managed funds ~ - 257,628 257,628

Total financial assets at fair value 613,718 - 3,686,408 4,300,126
31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Financial assets at fair value:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

« Unqguoted securities - - 275,843 275,843
+ Unquoted funds managed by external fund
managers - - 150,205 180,205

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

« Quoted securities 444,947 - - 444 947
+« Unquoted equity securities - - 2,890,580 2,990,580
Total financial agsets at fair value 444 947 - 3,416,628 3,861,575

The methods and valnation techniques used for the putpose of measuring fair values, are unchanged compared
to the previous year.

Measurement at fair value

The Group’s finance team performs valuations of financial instruments for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair values. Valuation techniques are selected based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the
overall objective of maximising the use of market-based information.
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20 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

20.2 Fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Measurement at fair value (continued)
The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are as follows:

a) Quoted shares
Quoted equity securities have been fair valued based on their latest price quotations on the respective stock exchange
at the reporting date.

b) Unquoted shares

Fair values of unquoted equity securities are derived through a market approach which utlises price multiples of
compatable quoted cotpaudes. A lack of muhetabity discount 15 applied ot the L values detived through this
approach which ranges from 10% to 15% (2018: 10% to 15%) and is based on the management’s judgment. A 5%
increase in the lack of marketability discount will result in a decrease in fair values of these securities by KI12166,929
(31 December 2018: KI2163,321).

c¢) Unquoted funds
Fair values of unquoted funds are measured based on their latest net asset values provided by the respective fund
managers.

Level 3 Fair value measurements

The Group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs that
are not based on observable market date. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled from
beginning to ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2019 2018

KD KD
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,416,628 3,905,915
Net change in fair value recognised in profit or loss {8,291) 49,390
Net change in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income 42,791 (200,130)
Redeemed / disposed during the year (287,343) (836,162)
Transferred from investment carried at cost - 497 615
Addition due to consolidation 522,623 -
Balance at the end of the year 3,686,408 3,416,628

21 Risk management objectives and policies

21.1  Risk management

Risk is an inherent part of the Group’s business activities. It is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
assessment, measurement and monitoring of the business activities, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
process of risk management is citical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Group
15 accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk,
liquidity risk, investment risk and market risk. Market risk is subdivided into profit rate risk, foreign currency risk
and equity price risk. The Group is also subject to operating risks. The independent tisk control process does not
include business tisks such as changes in the environment technology and industry. They are monitored and managed
through the Group’s Strategic Risk Managerment Framework.
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21 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

211 Risk management (continued)

Risk management structure
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management process and for approving the risk
strategies and principles.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors provides risk oversight and has the overall responsibility for determining the strategic
direction of the organisation and for creating the environment and the framework for risk management to operate
effectively.

Asset liability committee

The Asget Liability Committee (the “ALCO™) has been established to assist the menbers of Board of Diectots m
fulfilling their responsibilities with regard to asset and liability management and liquidity adequacy. Its objectives are
to:

®  Propose asset and liability management policies that are compatible with the Group’s risk philosophy and
tisk preferences;

®  Determine the strategy for the Group in terms of mix of assets and liabilities given its expectations of future
events;

*  Regulary monitor and assess the financing cost risk to earnings and capital under different financing cost
environments;

*  Manage liquidity to ensure obligations are met on an ongoing basis;

*  Support the maintenance of the Group’s desired risk preferences and statement of financial position profile;

*  Create and build a group-wide resource base for asset and liability management.

Investment commitiee
The Investment Committee is responsible of reviewing and recommending strategies, policies and limits for the
management of investment risk and matket risk.

For the investment risk, the committee reviews and recomtmends limits, or changes to established limits, related to
investment activity, monitoring of exposures against limits and approval of excess above those limits.

For the market risk, the committee reviews and recommends limits, or changes to established limits, related to
investment activity in terms of equity trading.

Credit committee
The Credit Committee is responsible for credit risk management. The committee ensures adequate risk capital against
credit exposures, identifies external factors that may have an impact on equity and determines approptiate strategies.

Audit committee

The risk management responsibility for the Audit Committee is mainly towards Operational Risk. The committee
identifies and presents operational isks in the course of regular internal audits with recommendations for corrective
actions. It also focuses the internal audit work on significant tisks aud auditing the Lisk inanagenent processes actoss
the Group.

2.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount
of risk it 1s willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by
monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.
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212 Credit Risk (continued)

The Group has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the
use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating Risk ratings are subject to
regular revision. The credit quality review process allows the Group to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks
to which it is exposed and take corrective action. The Group seeks to limit its credit tisk with respect to banls by
only dealing with reputable banks

Gross maximum exposute to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit tisk for the components of the consolidated statement
of financial position. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of
master netting and collateral agreements (if any).

Gross maximum Gross maximum
exposure exposure

31 December 31 December

2019 218

KD KD
Bank balances and short-term deposits 13,983,034 7,130,968
Accounts receivables and other assets 1,066,544 31,512
Total credit risk exposure 15,049,578 7,162,480

Where financial instrurnents are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represent the current credit risk
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could atise in the future as 2 result of changes in values.

The credit risk for bank balance and short-tertn deposits is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable financial institations with high credit quality and no history of default. Based on management
assessment, the expected credit loss impact arising from such financial assets are insignificant to the Group as the
risk of default has not increased significantly.

Collateral
The Group did not hold any collateral as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk
The Group’s financial assets, before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, can be
analysed by the following geographical regions and industrial sectors:

Banking and
financial
services Others Total
KD KD KD

31 December 2019
Kuwait 12,662,409 1,320,625 13,983,034
Others - 1,066,644 1,066,544

12,662,409 2,387,169 15,049,578
31 December 2018
Kuwait 6,881,070 31,481 6,912,551
Others 243,898 Ky 249,929

7,130,968 31,612 7,162,480
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Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using internal credit ratings. ‘I'he table below shows
the credit quality by class of asset for related consolidated statetnent of financial position lines, based on the Group’s

internal credit rating system.

Neither past due nor impaired

Righ Standard
Grade grade Total
KD KD KD
31 December 2019:
Bank balances and short-term deposits 13,983,034 - 13,983,034
Accounts receivables and other assets - 1,066,544 1,066,544
13,983,034 1,066,544 15,049,578

31 December 2018:
Bank balances and shori-term deposits 7,130,968 - 7,130,968
Accounts receivables and other assets - 31,512 31,512

7,130,968 31,512 7,162,480

21.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. To limit this risk,
management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors

liquidity on a daily basis.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities. Except for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from the reporting

date to the contractual maturity date.

‘The maturity profile for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, fair value through other
comprehensive income and investment properties is determined based on management’s estimate of liquidation

of those investments.

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities are as follows:

At 31 December 2018 1 year Over 1 year Total
KD KD KD

ASSETS
Bank balances and shortterm deposits 13,983,034 - 13,983,034
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 767,240 - 767,240
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income . 3,532,886 3,532,886
Investment in associates - 24,471,116 24,471,116
Investment properties - 983,345 983,345
Inventory 244,776 - 244,776
Accounts receivables and other assets 1,066,544 - 1,066,544
Property and equipment - 126,746 126,746

16,061,594 29,114,093 45,175,687
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 936,461 - 936,461

936,461 - 936,461
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21.3  Liquidity risk (continued)

1 year Over 1 year Total
KD KD KD

At 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Bank balances and shori-term deposits 7,130,968 - 7,130,968
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 426,048 - 426,048
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 3,435,527 3,435,527
Investment in associates - 24,161,375 24,161,375
Investment properties 2,358,940 2,358,940
Accounts receivable and other assets 31,512 - 31,512

7.688 528 20,066,042 37,544 370
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 532,229 410,283 942 512

532,229 410,283 942 512
The contractual maturity of financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows is as follows:
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1.5
31 December 2019 month Months Months Years Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 690,119 - - 690,119
690,119 - - 690,119
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5
31 December 2018 month Months Manths Years Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 532,229 71,840 604,069
532,229 71,840 604,069

21.4 Market risk

Market tisk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as
profit rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across vatious asset categoties,
diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous appraisal
of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short-term changes in fair value.

21.4.1 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect futire cash flows or the fair values
of the financial instruments. The Group is not exposed to significant profit rate risk on its profit bearing assets
and liabilities (short-term deposits and murabaha payables) as a result of reasonably possible changes in profit
tates since the Group is not exposed to any floating rate profit bearing assets and liabilities.
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214  Market risk (continued)

21.4.2 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

Foreign cutrency risk is managed by the treasury department of the Patrent Company on the basis of limits
determined by the Group’s Board of Directors and a continuous assessment of the Group’s open positions and
current and expected exchange rate movements. Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant
losses due to exchange rate fluctuations and consequently the Group does not hedge foreign currency exposures.

As of reporting date, the Group does not exposed to significant foreign currency risk

21.4.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from changes in the fair values of equity investments. Equity price risk is managed by the
direct investment department of the Parent Company. The unquoted equity price risk exposure arises from the
Group’s investment portfolio. The Group manages this through diversification of investments in terms of
geographical distribution and industry concentration. The Group’s quoted investments are listed on the Kuwait
Stock Exchange.

Dnoted securities:
The effect on total comprehensive loss due to a reasonably possible change in market indices, with all other
variables held constant is as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Effect on total Effect on total
Change in comprehensive Change in comprehensive
equity income for the equity income for the
Market indices price year price year
% KD % KD
Kuwait +10% 61,664 +10 44,495

21.5 Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When
controls fail to perform, operational rigks can cavse damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications,
ot lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through 2 control
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and
assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.

22 Capital risk management
‘The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
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22 Capital risk management (continued)
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return

capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

"The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Group includes within net debt, Islamic borrowings less bank balances and short-term deposits excluding
restricted bank balances. Capital represents total equity.

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Net debt - -
Less. Banl bulances and short-term deposits (excluding restricted balances) (13,983,034} (8,/51,152)
Total equity 44,239,226 36,608,182
Capital and net debt 44,239,226 36,608,182

Gearing ratio - -

23 Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year. Such
reclassification does not affect previously reported net assets, net equity, net results for the year or net increase
in cash and cash equivalents.

24 Dividend distribution

Subject to the requisite consent of the relevant authorities and approval from the general assembly, the Patent
Company’s Board of Directors propose not to make any distributions (31 December 2018: Nil).

The shareholders of the Parent Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 15 May 2019 approved the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

25 Subsequent event

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization characterised Covid-19 as a pandemic, negatively impacting
global markets, disrupting supply chains, and changing social behaviour. It is uncertain if Covid-19 will continue
disrupting global markets and what impact it will have on the Group’s operation. As the situation is fluid and
rapidly evolving, the Group do not consider it practicable to provide a quantitative estimate of the potential impact
of this outbreak on the Group.

The effect of Covid-19 are also likely to impact the Group’s estimates in 2020 (including IFRS 9 ECL assessments)
and the Group’s equily investments which are exposed to equity price risk.

Equity investments are classified either as investments at fair value through profit or loss or investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Covid-19 outbreak has resulted in declines in the stock market
indices throughout the world including Kuwait and GCC region.



